

Minutes of the
Millcreek City Council
April 22, 2024
5:00 p.m.
Work Meeting
7:00 p.m.
Regular Meeting

The City Council of Millcreek, Utah, met in a public work meeting and regular meeting on April 22, 2024, at City Hall, located at 1330 E. Chambers Avenue, Millcreek, UT 84106. The meeting was recorded for the City's website and had an option for online public comment.

PRESENT:

Council Members

Jeff Silvestrini, Mayor Silvia Catten, District 1 Thom DeSirant, District 2 Cheri Jackson, District 3 Bev Uipi, District 4 (electronic during work mtg)

City Staff

Mike Winder, City Manager
Elyse Sullivan, City Recorder
Francis Lilly, Assistant City Manager
John Brems, City Attorney
Kurt Hansen, Facilities Director
Rita Lund, Communications Director
Robert May, Long Range Planning Manager
Brad Sanderson, Current Planning Manager
Jim Hardy, Building Official
Fred Lutze, Deputy City Engineer

Attendees: Rick Hansen, Annalee Munsey, Ammon Allen, Jose Salinas, Chief Zach Robinson, Pam Roberts, Chief Christine Petty-Brown, Sergeant Scott Wilberger

WORK MEETING – 5:00 p.m. TIME COMMENCED – 5:01 p.m.

Mayor Silvestrini called the work meeting to order.

1. Metropolitan Water District of Salt Lake & Sandy Presentation; Annalee Munsey, General Manager

Annalee Munsey said there was key infrastructure in Millcreek. The district is a wholesale water provider that was organized in 1935. The purpose is to provide water supply to the Salt Lake Valley and part of that is being a local sponsor for the Provo River Project. Most of the water for the valley comes from the Deer Creek Reservoir. There is an aqueduct division and dam division, and they are the sponsor for the aqueduct division. There is a Board of Trustees that consists of Salt Lake City and Sandy city council members. There are two water conveyance systems, the Salt Lake Aqueduct and Point of the Mountain Aqueduct. There are two water treatment plants, Little Cottonwood Water Treatment Plant and Point of the Mountain Water Treatment Plant.

Mayor Silvestrini asked if the District runs the Big Cottonwood Plant. Munsey said no, that is a Salt Lake City facility, but they did the Little Cottonwood facility. Mayor Silvestrini asked if water was sold to Utah County communities. Munsey said no. The water storage consists of Point of the Mountain Reservoir, a 9 million gallon Reservoir in Little Cottonwood, a 10 million gallon in Cottonwood Heights, and the Terminal Reservoir in Millcreek.

Ammon Allen, Engineering Manager, said the primary unseen infrastructure that runs through Millcreek is the Salt Lake Aqueduct. It was built between 1939-1951. The corridor is 125 feet wide. The Point of the Mountain Aqueduct was built in 2006-2007. He showed images of a water treatment facility and Terminal Reservoir. The Terminal Reservoir was rebuilt from 2011-2018. The Salt Lake Aqueduct directly impacts more than 200 properties. It crosses several roadways. The Terminal Reservoir wasteway is a 48 inch diameter reinforced concrete pipe that takes drainage water and overflow from the reservoirs out to Parley's Creek, and that impacts another 30 or so properties. He showed a map of where the lines ran through Millcreek illustrating property ownership.

Allen gave an overview of current projects. The Cottonwoods Connection will impact traffic at Big Cottonwood Canyon. The Salt Lake Aqueduct hardening for seismic hazard resiliency would replace at least 6,250 feet in Millcreek at about Fortuna Way to Churchill Junior High. The Salt Lake City Public Utilities conveyance line was another project. Upcoming projects included SLAR Reach 3 is designing alignment for the Cottonwoods Connection project in January 2025, the Terminal Wasteway replacement (construction TBD), and rebuilding the Little Cottonwood Water Treatment Plant (2027-2035). Ammon invited the council to an open house on May 9th.

Council Member Uipi asked if the neighbors affected by the Fortuna Way project would be notified of the open house. Allen said not at the upcoming open house. When something was more concrete for that neighborhood, then they would notify residents about the project.

2. Unified Fire Authority Quarterly Report; Assistant Chief Zach Robinson

Chief Zach Robinson provided quarter one statistics. There were 1,339 total incidents with 462 emergent (35%). He gave a breakdown of the call types between fire, EMS, and others. There were 1,196 total engine/truck responses and 910 ambulance responses. The total emergent time was 4 minutes 35 seconds and 7 minutes 16 seconds from dispatch to arrival. He said recruit camp 57 was underway with 26 recruits halfway through the 16-week training. UFA had received 3 of 6 new ambulances. Three new fire engines would replace old apparatus. There were 52 firefighters in the captain testing process. A pancake breakfast at Station 106 was held on April 13th.

Chief Robinson said the seismic retrofit of Station 112 was completed the prior week. This completed the effort to have all 25 stations be seismically sound. Mayor Silvestrini said the city had tried to rebuild station 112 but ran into complications due to it being in a floodplain. Congress passed a spending plan which included a community appropriation to Millcreek to help complete Phase 1 of the Neff's Canyon debris basin, which would be the engineering of the structure to be built, to be able to rewrite the floodplain map. Millcreek also received a FEMA BRIC grant for about \$15 million to help build the debris basin. The project will cost about \$21 million. Phase II is about \$18 million. Millcreek applied for the grant and was denied, but then appealed and was successful.

Chief Robinson provided an April safety message of 5 key practices to help minimize the risk of springtime fires: 1. Properly store gasoline in approved containers, in a well-ventilated area, away from ignition sources. 2. Carefully dispose of oily rags. Oils commonly used in oil-based paints and stains, release heat as they dry. 3. Inspect your barbeque grill to ensure it is free of grease or fat buildup. 4. Keep combustible debris away from your home to protect from wildfires. 5. Clean out clothes dryer lint trap (after each use) and exhaust vent pipe (annually) to ensure the dryer is not restricted to prevent dryer fires.

3. Wasatch Front Waste and Recycling District Quarterly Report; Pam Roberts, General Manager/CEO

Pam Roberts said that day was the 50th anniversary of Earth Day. The 2024 theme is Planet vs. Plastic. The Wasatch Front Waste and Recycling District's (WFWRD) goal is to continually educate residents on recycling. The 15,798 homes in Millcreek are 18% of the approximately 85,937 homes in District boundaries. Residents of Millcreek diverted approximately 20.84% of waste from the landfill in the first quarter of 2024, compared to a District-wide estimated 19.04% diversion. The average disposal fee for Millcreek garbage curbside is \$37 per ton (3,775 tons delivered). The average processing fee for recycling curbside is \$52 per ton (843 tons diverted). The average processing for green curbside is \$17.10 per ton (52 tons diverted). There was approximately 99 tons of glass diverted. Roberts announced that Jr. Vigil won the 2024 National Waste and Recycling Association Driver of the Year for the public sector. Roberts provided statistics on the tonnage, pounds, and contamination of recycling. There has been a steady tonnage decline since 2019. She noted probable causes for decreased tonnage included cleaner recycling, increase in mail packaging as a possible contribution to more truck loads, decrease in additional recycling cans due to associated fees, and a decrease in tonnage did not equate to a decrease in volume.

Roberts discussed the seasonal container reservation program. The Board considered limiting repeat reservers. Council Member Jackson noted the one neighbor with a large driveway could be the one reserver for the neighborhood which would show as the repeat reserver. She asked about changing the reserve time from midnight to 8am. Roberts said the system would crash if the time changed. She said people on the waitlist who did not get one may be the first able to reserve the following year. Roberts was unsure how to accommodate neighbors that did a neighborhood cleanup.

Roberts said there are three Municipal Solid Waste processing facilities with three different fees per ton. All of the Millcreek waste is taken to the Salt Lake Valley Landfill at \$29 per ton. Trans Jordan was \$39 per ton. The Salt Lake Valley Transfer Station was \$37 per ton. There was \$217,624 savings from switching from the transfer station to the landfill. Roberts showed the council the District's boundary map. Momentum Recycling rolled out a weekly curbside food waste collections program in August 2022 in Millcreek. Millcreek currently has 121 subscribers and Momentum wishes to expand to interested residents along the southeast portion of WFWRD service boundaries. WFWRD's role remains to allow Momentum to provide this service within the service boundaries, provide addresses of residential properties in the areas of interest, and repost any social media information and other education that Momentum shares for education. The food waste is collected and then transported to Wasatch Resource Recovery facility in Davis County.

4. Staff Reports

Robert May said the updated single-family R-1 Zones code was waiting for the remaining code updates to be ready to come before the council for approval, however there were residents interested in the new building height maximums of 30 feet. He presented option 1 to the council, to approve the updated R-1 Zone code now before the remaining codes are ready. The concern is that it does not integrate with the current code for accessory structures, accessory dwelling units, subdivision code, and Residential Compatibility Overlay Zone (RCOZ). Option 2 is to wait until the remaining updated codes are approved (potentially in July). The concern is that people want to build now. Option 3 is to amend the current R-1 Zone max height elevation from 28 to 30 feet. The concern would be to amend the RCOZ chapter too. This process would take 1.5 months. Francis Lilly said the public process had already taken place, so it may not take that long. Mayor Silvestrini asked how it would integrate with the smaller lot sizes. May said the building envelope changes and the combined side yard setback changes would help some people. Mayor Silvestrini asked about doing any other updates at the same time as an interim step to the new code. May said minor changes could be made in the interim. The council gave staff directions to provide an ordinance that would solve the immediate problems.

5. Discussion of Agenda Items, Correspondence, and/or Future Agenda Items There was none.

Council Member Jackson moved to adjourn the work meeting at 6:06 p.m. Council Member DeSirant seconded. Mayor Silvestrini called for the vote. Council Member Catten voted yes, Council Member DeSirant voted yes, Council Member Jackson voted yes, Council Member Uipi voted yes, and Mayor Silvestrini voted yes. The motion passed unanimously.

REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 p.m. TIME COMMENCED: 7:00 p.m.

1. Welcome, Introduction and Preliminary Matters

1.1 Pledge of Allegiance

Mayor Silvestrini called the meeting to order and led the pledge of allegiance.

1.2 William Penn Elementary Afterschool Artists Presentation

Mayor Silvestrini said the council wanted to recognize artistic students in the William Penn Elementary Afterschool Program. The Asian Association of Utah conducts a number of afterschool programs in Millcreek which are of value to our students. An important program this year was conducted at William Penn Elementary, every day of the week. This program served children in grades K-5. Millcreek Promise, working with community volunteers, provided art supplies and art experiences. He noted artwork from students in the program was on display at city hall. The council congratulated the children with certificates.

1.3 Millcreek Promise Scholars Presentation

The city council awarded six \$1,000 scholarships to two students from Olympus High School, Cottonwood High School, and Skyline High School. The mayor recognized the recipients: Steeven Valdiva and Samantha Vance from Cottonwood High School, Alan Salinas-Barrera and Sarah Cundick from Olympus High School, and Anhkhoa Le and Ilena Dang from Skyline High School.

1.4 Unified Police Department Millcreek Precinct Officer of the Month for March 2024

Chief Petty-Brown announced Sergeant Scott Wilberger as the Officer of the Month for March 2024. Sergeant Wilberger covered scheduling and staffing as needed for the department. The Citizens Advisory Board presented the sergeant with a gift.

Council Member Uipi took time for a personal privilege to recognize Pita Tonga, from UFA Station 112, who lost his daughter, Fifita (Nani) Leilani Tonga, recently. Council Member Uipi and the council expressed condolences.

1.5 We Show Up Week Proclamation

Mayor Silvestrini proclaimed the following:

"WE SHOW UP" WEEK

WHEREAS, National Volunteer Week is celebrated April 21st to April 27th; and

WHEREAS, HCA Healthcare and St. Mark's Hospital is committed to showing up for its patients, colleagues, and community; and

WHEREAS, volunteering and community service are essential pillars in fostering unity, compassion, and positive change within the city of Millcreek; and

WHEREAS, the "We Show Up" week aims to inspire and encourage Millcreek citizens to actively participate in volunteer activities that will continue to enrich the lives of those in need and strengthen the Millcreek community; and

WHEREAS, the strength and resilience of the Millcreek community are demonstrated by the dedication of its residents to support and uplift one another; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT KNOWN, I, Jeff Silvestrini, Mayor of Millcreek, the City Council concurring, do hereby proclaim April 22nd to April 27th as Millcreek's "We Show Up" week. I encourage all residents to embrace the spirit of service by dedicating their time, talents, and resources to support local organizations, initiatives, and individuals in need.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, I have set my hand and caused to be affixed the Great Seal of Millcreek this day April 22, 2024.

Council Member Jackson moved to adopt the proclamation. Council Member Uipi seconded. Mayor Silvestrini called for the vote. Council Member Catten voted yes, Council Member DeSirant voted yes, Council Member Jackson voted yes, Council Member Uipi voted yes, and Mayor Silvestrini voted yes. The motion passed unanimously.

1.6 Building Safety Month Proclamation

Mayor Silvestrini proclaimed the following:

BUILDING SAFETY MONTH — May 2024

WHEREAS, Millcreek is committed to recognizing that our growth and strength depends on the safety and essential role our homes, buildings and infrastructure play, both in everyday life and when disasters strike, and

WHEREAS, our confidence in the resilience of these buildings that make up our community is achieved through the devotion of vigilant guardians—building safety and fire prevention officials, architects, engineers, builders, tradespeople, design professionals, laborers, plumbers and others in the construction industry—who work year-round to ensure the safe construction of buildings, and

WHEREAS, these guardians are dedicated members of the International Code Council, a nonprofit that brings together local, state, territorial, tribal and federal officials who are experts in the built environment to create and implement the highest-quality codes to protect us in the buildings where we live, learn, work and play, and

WHEREAS, these modern building codes include safeguards to protect the public from hazards such as hurricanes, snowstorms, tornadoes, wildland fires, floods and earthquakes, and

WHEREAS, Building Safety Month is sponsored by the International Code Council to remind the public about the critical role of our communities' largely unknown protectors of public safety—our local code officials—who assure us of safe, sustainable and affordable buildings that are essential to our prosperity, and

WHEREAS, "Mission Possible," the theme for Building Safety Month 2024, encourages us all to raise awareness about building safety on a personal, local and global scale, and

WHEREAS, each year, in observance of Building Safety Month, people all over the world are asked to consider the commitment to improve building safety, resilience and economic investment at home and in the community, and to acknowledge the essential service provided to all of us by local and state building departments, fire prevention bureaus and federal agencies in protecting lives and property.

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Jeff Silvestrini, Mayor of Millcreek, do hereby proclaim the month of May 2024 as Building Safety Month. Accordingly, I encourage our citizens to join us as we participate in Building Safety Month activities.

ADOPTED on this the 22nd day of April, 2024 in Millcreek, Utah.

Council Member Uipi moved to approve this proclamation. Council Member Catten seconded. Mayor Silvestrini called for the vote. Council Member Catten voted yes, Council Member DeSirant voted yes, Council Member Jackson voted yes, Council Member Uipi voted yes, and Mayor Silvestrini voted yes. The motion passed unanimously.

1.7 Public Comment

There was none.

2. Planning Matters

2.1 First Reading of ZM-24-001, Request for a Rezone from R-1-10 to R-4-8.5 with an Accompanying Development Agreement and an Amendment to the General Plan Changing the Future Land Use Designation from Neighborhood 1 to Neighborhood 2 at 4433 S Garden Drive by Applicant Nathan Brockbank; Brad Sanderson, Current Planning Manager

Brad Sanderson highlighted the property on a map. The General Plan differed from the zoning map for the area. The subject parcel is currently zoned for Single Family Residential Use (R-1) and is surrounded by several different zones, such as R-4-8.5, R-M, R-1-5, and R-1-0. The lot currently has one single-family and one two-family dwelling onsite. Many properties in the area have nonconforming uses, such as duplexes, for underlying zoning and future land use categorization. The area was zoned R-3-A and R-2-10 from 1953 to approximately 2004. From 2004 on the area has been zoned R-1-10. The proposal was for two triplexes. He showed the council the site plan and elevations presented to the planning commission in February 2024. The General Plan Goals N-1 and N-2 and strategies 1.5 and 1.4 were considered. At the neighborhood meeting, there was concern that the fit was not compatible with the neighborhood. The Planning Commission made a favorable recommendation for approval of the rezone with the condition that the property contains no more than four residential units for reasons to do with the character of the neighborhood. Since that meeting, the applicant changed the building elevations in an attempt to address the neighborhood compatibility and neighborhood character.

Sanderson asked the council if neighborhood character and compatibility was based on design or density. Mayor Silvestrini said the state legislature frowned upon local governments implementing residential design standards. He had concerns about compelling the applicant to certain design standards. Sanderson noted some design standards could be implemented through a development agreement. Council Member Catten asked why the Neighborhood had to change to 2. Sanderson said the General Plan should coincide with the density. Council Member Jackson expressed concern with creating an "island" of zoning. Sanderson said the existing zoning was shared with the neighboring property, though it did not match the General Plan. Council Member Catten was concerned that a Neighborhood 2 island would give other properties motivation to change, which would then change the character of the neighborhood. Sanderson said there were ways of concealing density in structures if the concern was for the six units. Council Member Catten was fine with the density proposal but worried what acceptance would lead to as far as a precedent. Mayor Silvestrini was willing to accept a building that looks like single family housing such as the revised proposal. Council Member DeSirant asked about making the northern lot a Neighborhood 2 designation as well. Sanderson pointed out there would be a General Plan update in the near future to clean up existing discrepancies. Council Member Jackson asked about the unit being for rent.

Nathan Brockbank, applicant, said the access to the northern property units would be used for these new units. He said he was willing to have the council and staff assist with the building design. He said the project would be recorded as separately platted units, but they would be rentals as long as he owned the property. He said he could not economically do the four units as the Planning Commission recommended. Council Member Catten asked about plans for the applicant acquiring more property that would change this development. Brockbank said he would not expand if the council did not

want it. Mayor Silvestrini noted this type of housing filled a need in the city. Mike Winder said he worked with the applicant on the northern portion of the project over a decade ago. The existing project has 16 parking stalls for 6 units. There is an onsite manager. The council felt amending the General Plan would make more sense with an update and not with this rezone. Sanderson said it was good practice, but the council did not need to change it now.

3. Business Matters

3.1 Discussion and Consideration of Resolution 24-10, Approving a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Holladay for Wasatch Boulevard Improvements
Fred Lutze said the city received a \$4.5 million grant for a mixed use trail on Wasatch Boulevard. Holladay received \$600,000 for enhanced bike lanes on Wasatch Boulevard. He said the city was getting \$1.5 million for piping of canal and roadway improvements on 2000 E on the north side of 3300 S. Mayor Silvestrini said the state also provided a legislative appropriation of \$1.4 million for that project. Council Member Jackson asked about coordination with design with Porsche's portion on Wasatch Blvd. Lutze said there would be coordination based on what goes in first. Council Member Jackson asked about right-of-way acquisition. Lutze said there had been a public involvement process. He said there would be easement purchases. He said the city received \$500,000 of active transportation funding for a crosswalk and sidewalk off Upland Terrace across 2700 E. The Memorandum of Understanding with Holladay represented the cities comanaging the project on Wasatch Blvd. as a joint effort. Mayor Silvestrini said Holladay would rely on Millcreek to manage the project.

Council Member Jackson moved to approve Resolution 24-10, Approving a Memorandum of Understanding with the City of Holladay for Wasatch Boulevard Improvements. Council Member Uipi seconded. The Recorder called for the vote. Council Member Catten voted yes, Council Member DeSirant voted yes, Council Member Jackson voted yes, Council Member Uipi voted yes, and Mayor Silvestrini voted yes. The motion passed unanimously.

3.2 Discussion and Consideration of Ordinance 24-18, Regulating, Preventing, and Banning the Discharge of Fireworks within Certain Areas of the City Mayor Silvestrini noted the council discussed the item at the last meeting. Council Member Jackson said consistency was mentioned, however the map the prior year was an anomaly. Council Member DeSirant pointed out the map had been in place for the last two years. He appreciated consistency but would like Scott Avenue included in the restriction area. The council discussed where the boundaries should be and looked at Salt Lake City's and Murray's boundaries. Council Members DeSirant and Catten would be okay extending the boundary to the west to 700 East.

Council Member Uipi moved to approve the existing firework restriction map with the most western boundary being 900 East. Council Member Catten seconded. Council Member DeSirant made an amended motion to include Scott Avenue Park as part of the restricted area. Council Member Uipi seconded. Mike Winder pointed out that Sunnyvale Park was not included in the current restrictions. Council Member Catten was inclined to include it since Scott Avenue Park was added. Council Member DeSirant made a second amended motion to adopt Ordinance 24-18 with the addition of restricted areas to include Scott

Avenue Park and Sunnyvale Park. Council Member Uipi seconded the second amended motion. Council Member Jackson did not like putting restrictions on people and then keeping them to be restrictive. Government does that too much. Mayor Silvestrini said the recommendation of the Fire Marshal is that the restricted area is at risk. The Recorder called for the vote. Council Member Catten voted yes, Council Member DeSirant voted yes, Council Member Jackson voted no, Council Member Uipi voted yes, and Mayor Silvestrini voted yes. The motion passed.

4. Reports

4.1 Mayor's Report

Mayor Silvestrini reported that he attended the Utah League of Cities and Towns convention. Millcreek celebrated Earth Day the prior weekend. There would be a Golden Spike statue event on Millcreek Common on May 10th.

4.2 City Council Member Reports

Council Member Uipi reported that Millcreek was recognized as a Get Healthy Community. Council Member Jackson announced Dutch Kings Day the coming weekend.

4.3 Treasurer's Report

Council Member Jackson reported that as of April 22, 2024, there was \$1,966,107 in the operating account and \$44,827,919 PTIF. For revenue, the current property taxes received was \$11,589,404, the General Sales Tax (7 months) was \$8,891,250, building permits was \$1,568,201, and total General Fund Revenue was \$33,026,662, all of which was likely to meet or exceed the budget. The disbursements included \$5,084,585 in checks, \$198,393 in EFT/bank drafts, and \$310,949 in direct deposit for two payroll periods.

4.4 Staff Reports

There were no reports.

4.5 Unified Police Department Report

Chief Petty-Brown reported the crime statistics for March 2024. There were 2,500 calls, 811 cases, 428 citations, and 23 booking arrests. She reviewed statistics from Violent Crimes Unit, Special Victims Unit, Mental Health Unit, Crash Accident Reconstruction Unit, SWAT, and K9 Unit. In March, Millcreek had 34 assaults, 12 burglaries, 15 drug offenses, 61 family offenses, 67 larcenies, 1 robbery, 5 sex offenses, and 15 stolen vehicles. The Community Crime Suppression Unit had 8 arrests, 149 traffic stops, 8 stolen vehicles investigated, 3 recovered stolen vehicles, 9 narcotics investigations, 9 fleeing vehicles, 12 assisted patrols, and drug seizures. The Traffic Enforcement Unit responded to 111 traffic accidents and investigated 14 hit and runs. For the month of March, Millcreek Investigations Detectives were assigned 91 cases. During the same month, 60 cases were submitted for charges with either the District Attorney's Office or the Holladay Justice Court. Through collaborative efforts with the businesses and outside investigators, four commercial burglary cases were solved. The suspect was ultimately charged with numerous burglaries and held accountable. In the month of March, Millcreek Officers responded to 67 mental health related calls for service, and 15 calls related to transient activity. Millcreek C.O.P. Detectives located an abandoned campsite

at Big Cottonwood Regional Park, 1635 E. Murray Holladay Road. The abandoned property and the area was cleaned up. The Community Oriented Policing Unit and school resource officers brought out the Ice Cream Van to Evergreen Jr. High, to meet with students involved in the after-school program. The detectives spoke to the students about how positive actions and attitudes can affect them in positive ways. Afterwards, the students were given Creamies Ice Cream.

5. New Items for Subsequent Consideration

There were none.

6. Calendar of Upcoming Meetings

- Canyon Rim Citizens Association Mtg, 5/1/24, 6:30 p.m.
- East Mill Creek Community Council Mtg., 5/2/24, 7:00 p.m.
- Mt. Olympus Community Council Mtg., 5/6/24, 6:00 p.m.
- Millcreek Community Council Mtg., 5/7/24, 6:30 p.m.
- Historic Preservation Commission Mtg., 5/9/24, 6:00 p.m.
- City Council Mtg. 5/13/24 7:00 p.m.
- Planning Commission Mtg., 5/15/24, 5:00 p.m.

ADJOURNED: Council Member Uipi moved to adjourn the meeting at 8:38 p.m. Council Member DeSirant seconded. Mayor Silvestrini called for the vote. Council Member Catten voted yes, Council Member DeSirant voted yes, Council Member Jackson voted yes, Council Member Uipi voted yes, and Mayor Silvestrini voted yes. The motion passed unanimously. Date 5-13-2024

APPROVED:

Jeff Silvestrini, Mayor

Attest:

Elyse Sullivan, Recorder